Town of Swansboro Board of Commissioners October 23, 2023, Regular Meeting Minutes

In attendance: Mayor John Davis, Mayor Pro Tem Frank Tursi, Commissioner Pat Turner, Commissioner Larry Philpott, Commissioner PJ Pugliese, and Commissioner Jeffrey Conaway.

Call to Order/Opening Prayer/Pledge

The meeting was called to order at 5:30 pm. Mayor Davis led the Pledge of Allegiance.

Public Comment

Cynthia LaCorte of 220 Elm Street shared that she felt the progress that had been made on the EOC/PSB project did not support safety as a top concern. She also shared that the Social District consideration should take in account citizens comments and concerns. She supported downtown remaining as a family environment and was not in support of the district.

Douglas Eckendorf of 113 Cormorant Drive shared that he had several inquiries about the EOC/PSB project. He inquired if there was a competitive bid process completed to select the consultant hired and if so, what process was used. He further shared that consideration should be given to use military facilities in a partnership.

Lisa Mainess Parkash of 532 Sabiston Drive, Hariette Nichols of 122 Front Street, Spade Rhude of 136 Front Street and Bill Justice of 223 Elm Street all shared their opposition to the Social District consideration for downtown.

Adoption of Agenda and Consent Items

On a motion by Commissioner Philpott, seconded by Commissioner Turner, the agenda and the below consent items were approved unanimously.

- May 8, 2023, Regular Meeting Minutes
- May 17, 2023, Special Meeting Minutes
- Budget Ordinance Amendment #2024-4
- Tax Refund Requests

Lien, Robert Alan & Allison Brodie	\$514.42 Military
McDonald, Evelyn Lee	\$24.82 Sold/Traded
Mixon, Wayne Crosby & Lynne Giddens	\$18.19 Tag Surrender
Peffley, Rachel Marie & Blake Lee	\$28.85 Tag Surrender
Schneider, Stephanie Michelle	\$14.86 Tag Surrender
Watson, Roger Levi Jr. & Megan Anne Edwards	\$112.09 Tag Surrender
Aldret, Kenneth Manning	\$144.77 Tag Surrender
Welch, Chad Leonard & Guillen, Sandra Soledad	\$5.88 Tag Surrender

Appointments/Recognitions/Presentations

Employee Introductions

Fire Chief Randall introduced his department's newest employees. Full-time Fire Engineer Michael Beck, Fire Captain Robert Hannon, Captain Jonathan Sevey, Assistant Chief of Training Robert Jackson.

Public Works Director Bates introduced his department's newest employees. Dustin Stiles, Ryan Smith and Joel Pierce.

Employee of the Quarter

Public Works Director Bates introduced the Employee of the Quarter, Scott Brinkley. He shared that Scott had been an employee of the Town for 10 years now and was promoted to Crew Leader in September. He was selected due to all the efforts he has put into taking charge of all the public buildings and now as crew leader.

Business Non-Consent

Social District Survey

Project/Planning Coordinator Brehmer reviewed that the Board of Commissioners requested at the August 14th meeting to conduct a larger scale survey from Shore Drive all the way to Highway 24 to both residents and businesses. Over 300 surveys were sent out on October 3rd with a due date of October 12th.

From the start of the Social District Discussion on March 27, 2023, to today, October 23, 2023, three rounds of surveys were conducted. The scope and result of each survey were as follows:

- 1. March 2023, surveys were hand delivered to business owners downtown in the proposed district. The results were Yes-10 and No-2.
- 2. August 2023, surveys were hand delivered to both business owners and residents bordering the proposed district. The results were Yes-3 and No-5.
- 3. October 2023, surveys were mailed to both business owners and all residents that span from the Methodist Church on Shore Drive to Highway 24. The results were Yes-32 and No-17.

At this time the board was not in support of implementing a Social District in downtown Swansboro. The board expressed appreciation to staff for the effort to research and provide details.

Monthly Financial Report as of September 30, 2023

Finance Director Johnson reviewed details from the monthly financial report, attached herein with the PowerPoint presentation of the meeting. She shared that a deficit

existed due to the ad valorum taxes which had not been received. Additionally, an option for investing the SCIF funds would be provided to the Board at a future meeting.

Public Safety/Emergency Operations Center Professional Services for Design and Construction Phase

Town Manager Webb reviewed that the PSB/EOC Consultant Becker Morgan had prepared the next phase – Professional Services Agreement/Design and Construction Phase for the PSB/EOC Project. Based on that Feasibility Study, the Board of Commissioners selected Option C in August and Becker Morgan had developed a preliminary design schematic for visibility and the agreement for Professional Services/Design and Construction Phases. The indicated cost for this phase would range from 8-10% of the estimated construction costs which for Option C was \$9,900,000. The Professional Services Agreement for Design and Construction is \$840,500. The services provided were broken down as follows:

- Schematic Design – 35% Documents for Review and Comment

Schematic Design – 35%

- Design Development 65% Documents for Review and Comment
- Construction Documents 100% Documents for Bidding, Permitting and Construction
- Basic Services

0

- o Programming (previously completed scope shown for reference) (\$19,160)
- o Task 001

Task	002	
•	Design Development – 65%	\$200,220
	Construction Documents – 100%	\$238 020

Construction Documents – 100% \$238,020Design subtotal \$643,740

o Task 003 (please note, these may be adjusted based on final scope)

Bidding and Construction Administration \$196,760Total \$840,500

In response to inquiries from the Board, Ernie Olds with Becker Morgan clarified the following:

- If the board desired to look for property instead of constructing on existing property, Option 1 to create a schematic design would be a good starting point from here and would be beneficial when searching/applying for additional funding/grants.
- The schematic design would include 3D renderings.

\$205,500

On a motion by Commissioner Philpott, seconded by Commissioner Turner, approval to proceed with Option 1 for a Schematic Design was approved unanimously.

Future consideration on land acquisition would be explored by the committee and report back to the board at a future meeting.

Future Agenda Topics

Future agenda items were shared for visibility and comment. In addition, an opportunity was provided for the Board to introduce items of interest and subsequent direction for placement on future agendas.

The following items were addressed:

- Presentation from Ricky's Retreat

Public Comment

Bill Justice of 223 Elm Street shared that he appreciated all the Board was doing and was glad to see that the social district was not approved.

Doug Eckendorf of 113 Cormorant Drive shared that he felt the Board made the correct decision on the social district and offered his assistance to the Fire and Police Departments with the EOC/PSB project.

Cynthia Lacorte shared her appreciation to the board for not approving of the social district.

Manager's Comments

Manager Webb shared that Town Clerk Fender would be starting the Municipal County and Administration course at the UNC Chapel Hill School of Government once a week for the next 8 months.

Additionally, she shared that notification was received that the Town was awarded its 27th GFOA Certificate of Achievement for financial reporting. Appreciation was expressed to Finance Director Sonia Johnson.

Board Comments

Commissioner Conaway shared that he had judged the Halloweenie Roast this past week and it was a very enjoyable event and Parks & Recreation did a wonderful job.

Commissioner Philpott shared that he was happy with the progress that had been made with the EOC/PSB committee.

All Board members expressed their happiness and appreciation to staff for the success of the Mullet Festival and the opening parade.

Closed Session

On a motion by Commissioner Turner, seconded by Commissioner Philpott the board entered closed session at 7:09 pm pursuant to NCGS 143-318.11 (a) (5) to instruct the public body's staff on negotiating terms for property acquisition.

Pursuant to a motion duly made and seconded in closed session the board returned to open session.

Adjournment

On a motion by Commissioner Philpott, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Tursi, the meeting adjourned at 7:33 pm.